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Vision
To transform the handling of dirty bulk cargo, augment 
country’s port infrastructure and bring efficiencies to the 
logistics supply chains across industries of Pakistan.



Mission
To operate state of the art dirty bulk cargo handling terminal at Port Qasim by imparting 
premium services to our partners and making positive contributions to community and 
environment while safeguarding the interests of our shareholders.
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Code of Conduct
The Code of Conduct (the Code) of the Company 
is adopted by and applies to all Board Members, 
Senior Management and Employees of the Company 
and is based on the fundamental principles of 
discipline, integrity and mutual respect. The Code 
intends to provide guidance to the Company and 
its stakeholders to conduct business with honesty, 
integrity and in accordance with the highest ethical 
and legal standards.

Salient Features of the Code are:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

All employees are required to maintain and support 
the Company in maintaining the highest degree of 
Corporate Governance practices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES & 
REGULATIONS

We respect the law at all times. Compliance with 
all applicable laws and regulations must never be 
compromised. We also expect our employees to 
comply with all internal rules and regulations as are 
applicable in any given situation.

TRANSACTIONS’ TRANSPARENCY

Company ensures that true, fair and timely business 
transactions must be recorded by maintaining the 
accounting and financial reporting standards, as 
applicable to the company.

INSIDER TRADING

Employees of the Company are required to refrain 
from Insider Trading and are required to comply with 
the Insider Trading Regulations laid down by SECP 
and updated from time to time.

PROTECTION OF COMPANY ASSETS

Employees must never engage in fraudulent or any 
other dishonest conduct involving the property or 
assets of the Company. All employees shall safeguard 
and make only proper and efficient use of Company 
property and shall seek to protect it from loss, damage, 
misuse, theft, fraud, embezzlement and destruction. 
These obligations cover both tangible and intangible 
assets, including trademarks, know-how, confidential 
or proprietary information.

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

A Conflict of Interest occurs when personal interests 
of an employee compete with the interests of 
the Company. While representing the Company 
in dealings with third parties, employees shall 
not allow themselves to be placed in a position in 
which an actual or apparent conflict of interest 
exists. Employees are expected to be honest and 
ethical in dealing with each other, with customers, 
suppliers, dealers, vendors and contractors to avoid 
compromises on the ability of transacting business 
on competitive basis.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Confidential information consists of any information 
that is not or not yet public information. It includes 
trade secrets, business, marketing and service 
plans, engineering ideas, databases, records, salary 
information and any non-published financial or 
other data. Furthermore, employees must use best 
efforts to avoid unintentional disclosure by applying 
special care when storing or transmitting confidential 
information

ANTI-BRIBERY / CORRUPTION

Employees must never, directly or through 
intermediaries, offer or promise any personal or 
improper financial or other advantage in order to 
obtain or retain a business or other advantage from 
a third party, whether public or private. Nor must 
they accept any such advantage in return for any 
preferential treatment of a third party. Moreover, 
employees must refrain from any activity or behavior 
that could give rise to the appearance or suspicion 
of such conduct or the attempt thereof. Employees 
should be aware that the offering or giving of 
improper benefits in order to influence the decision 
of the recipient, even if he or she is not a government 
official, may not only entail disciplinary sanctions 
but also result in criminal charges. Improper benefits 
may consist of anything of value for the recipient, 
including employment or consultancy contracts for 
closely related parties.

RECEIVING OF GIFTS, PAYMENTS

Employees shall not be influenced by receiving favours 
nor shall they try to improperly influence others by 
providing favours. Employees may only offer or 
accept reasonable meals and symbolic gifts which are 
appropriate under the circumstances, and they shall 
not accept or offer gifts, meals, or entertainment if such 
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behaviour could create the impression of improperly 
influencing the respective business relationship.
No employee shall offer to or accept from any third 
party gifts taking the form of money, loans, kickbacks 
or similar monetary advantages whatever the value 
involved.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

The Company believes in providing equal opportunities 
to all its employees. There is no discrimination of caste, 
religion, color, marital status and gender at work. All 
the policies and practices are administered in a manner 
ensuring equal opportunity to the eligible candidates 
and all decisions are merit based.

HARASSMENT FREE WORKPLACE

We respect the personal dignity, privacy and personal 
rights of every employee and are committed to 
maintaining a workplace free from discrimination 
and harassment. Therefore, employees must not 

discriminate on the basis of origin, nationality, religion, 
race, gender, age or engage in any kind of verbal or 
physical harassment. Strict disciplinary action will be 
taken against any person who is found to be in breach 
of this rule.

WHISTLE BLOWING

All employees are advised to immediately report any 
improper, unethical or illegal conduct of any colleague 
or Supervisor through an email at: info@pibt.com.pk
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Role of Chairman 
The principal role of the Chairman of the Board is to manage and to provide leadership to the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The Chairman Provides leadership and governance of the 
Board so as to create the conditions for overall Board’s and individual Director’s effectiveness, 
and ensures that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. 
The Chairman’s role involves (but is not limited to) the following: 

•	 To act as a liaison between Company’s senior management and the Board. 
•	 To ensure that the Board plays a full and constructive part in the development and determination of the 

Company’s strategies and policies, and that Board decisions taken are in the Company’s best interests and 
fairly reflect Board’s consensus.

•	 To ensure that the strategies and policies agreed by the Board are effectively implemented by the Chief Executive 
and the management.

•	 To promote and oversee the highest standards of corporate governance within the Board and the Company. 
•	 To establish good corporate governance practices and promote highest standards of integrity, credibility, probity 

and corporate governance throughout the Company and particularly at Board level.
•	 To ensure that the Board only directs the Company and does not manage it. 
•	 To ensure that relevant, accurate and up to date Company information is received from the management and 

shared with the board members to enable them to monitor performance, make sound decisions and give 
appropriate advice to promote the success of the Company. 

•	 To review the Board performance and to take the lead in identifying and meeting the development needs of 
individual directors and to address the development needs of the Board as a whole with a view to enhancing 
its overall effectiveness as a team. 

•	 To manage and solve conflict (if any) amongst the Board members and to also ensure freedom of opinion in the 
Board. 

•	 To promote highest moral, ethical and professional values and good governance throughout the Company.
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Role of CEO
The CEO is responsible for putting the strategy defined by the Board into practice. The 
CEO’s leadership role also entails being ultimately responsible for all day-to-day management 
decisions and for implementing the Company’s long and short term goals and plans. The main 
responsibilities of the CEO are as follows: 

•	 To develop strategies involving the executive team, for the implementation of decisions established by the Board 
and its Committees. 

•	 To maintain an effective communication with the Chairman and bring all important Company matters to the 
attention of the Board. 

•	 To lead the management and to ensure effective working relationships with the Chairman and the Board 
by meeting or communicating with the Chairman on a regular basis to review key developments, issues, 
opportunities and concerns.

•	 Responsible for working in the best interest of the Company and directing its overall growth by achieving and 
surpassing the performance targets set by the Board. 

•	 To implement, with the support of the management, the strategies and policies as approved by the Board and 
its committees in pursuit of the Company’s objectives.

•	 Oversee the implementation of the Company’s financial and operational plans in accordance with its business 
strategy. Identify the potential avenues for diversification and investments and recommend plans/proposals to 
the Board for its approval. 

•	 To ensure that all strategic and operational risks are effectively managed to an acceptable level and that adequate 
system of internal controls is in place for all major operational and financial areas. 

•	 To develop Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) of the Company for the approval of Board and ensure dissemination 
of the same throughout the organization as the standards of performance at both individual and collective levels. 

•	 To communicate on behalf of the Company with shareholders, employees, government authorities, other 
stakeholders and the public. 

•	 To promote highest moral, ethical and professional values and good governance throughout the Company
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Chairman’s Review Report

It gives me pleasure to present this review report to the stakeholders of Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited 
(the “Company”) on the overall performance of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the effectiveness of its role 
in achieving the objectives of the Company.
PIBT has an effective governance framework in place which complies with all the requirements set out in the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 with respect 
to the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board and its committees.
The annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has been carried out under the Code of Corporate 
Governance to ensure that the Board’s overall performance is in line with the objectives set for the Company. 
During the year under review, the Board has played an effective role in managing the affairs of the Company 
depicting successful operational performance of the Company as elaborated in the Director’s Report.
The Board has also devised a strategic vision of how the organization should be evolving over the next three to 
five years keeping in view our valued stakeholders (shareholders, regulators, customers, employees, vendors and 
the society as a whole). Further, the Board has spent sufficient time on setting annual goals and targets for the 
management in all major performance areas.
The Board remained updated regularly with respect to realization of the Company’s objectives, goals, strategies 
and its financial performance through interactive presentations by the management, internal auditors and other 
independent consultants and accordingly provided appropriate direction and oversight on a timely basis.
In building an effective governance and control environment the Board has put in place a transparent and robust 
system of compliance with best practices of corporate governance and by promoting ethical and fair behavior 
across the Company.
On behalf of PIBT, I wish to acknowledge the contribution of all our employees, Port Qasim Authority, our lenders 
namely International Finance Corporation, OPEC Funds for International Development, the syndicate of Pakistani 
commercial banks, our vendors, our contractors and our valued shareholders, for their confidence, continued 
support and commitment to the Company.

Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui
Chairman
Karachi: September 02, 2019
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Directors’ Report

The Directors 
are pleased to 
present the Annual 
report of Pakistan 
International Bulk 
Terminal Limited 
(PIBT) (“The 
Company”) together 
with the audited 
financial statements 
of the Company 
for the year ended 
June 30, 2019.

ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Company has entered into a Build Operate Transfer 
(BOT) contract with Port Qasim Authority (PQA) on 
November 06, 2010 for the construction, development, 
operations and management of a coal and clinker / cement 
terminal at Port Muhammad Bin Qasim for a period of thirty 
years.

The terminal has been developed in the national interest in 
accordance with the master plan of the Ministry of Maritime 
Affairs as the common-user terminal for dirty bulk cargo 
in Pakistan. The Project warrants significant importance, 
being the linkage of the supply chain catering to the 
national requirement of coal imports for the power plants, 
cement manufacturers and industrial consumers, and by 
increasing the port infrastructure capacity for handling 
imported coal in Pakistan.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, your Company has successfully handled 
8,553,410 tons cargo against 2,745,048 tons last 
year, through various vessels with positive contribution 
margins depicting year-on-year volume growth of 
212%. Corresponding to the business performance, the 
management of your Company is focusing on strategies 
to bring more efficiency in cargo handling operations, 
with the objective of providing unparalleled services to its 
customers.
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Considering the environmental challenges associated 
with handling of coal at Karachi Port Trust (KPT) and 
prevalence of unfavorable health conditions for the 
citizens of the Karachi, the Honorable Supreme Court 
of Pakistan (SC) via order dated June 20, 2018 has 
refrained the handling of all the ships carrying imported 
coal to Pakistan at KPT. PIBT’s existing terminal 
facilities of handling and storage are already operating 
at international standards of efficiency and pollution 
control, and the Company stands committed to the 
Honorable SC’s order to handle all the coal imports that 
were earlier being handled at KPT.

Moreover, your Company has decided to work 
towards setting up LPG handling facilities at its 
existing terminal site for which a supplementary 
Implementation Agreement has to be executed with 
PQA in due course. The LPG operations will improve 
profitability by contributing to the infrastructure’s fixed 
costs and add value to the Company’s operations.

ECONOMIC FACTORS FACING THE COMPANY

The Government of Pakistan (“GOP”) has maintained 
its focus on accelerating sustainable economic growth 
through productivity in infrastructure schemes such 
as power projects, motorways, the Orange train and 
low-income housing schemes etc. These activities, 
coupled with the plans to construct water reservoirs 
in the Country, is likely to raise domestic demand for 
cement, which in turn, should provide a surge to the 
demand for imported coal. Moreover, many industries 
such as textile, paper, etc. have shifted to high quality 
imported coal in their primary production processes; 
this is expected to be another source of sustainable 
demand for imported coal.

The GOP also plans to invest in coal-based power 
plants to meet the increasing energy demand and 
to overcome the undersupply of the energy sector in 
Pakistan. Coal is one of the cheapest fuels for power 
generation however, it still retains minimal share 
in the energy source mix in Pakistan, and hence 
a natural shift from furnace oil to coal fired power 
plants is expected. This reliance on coal for power 
generation will further augment demand for imported 
coal against indigenous coal which is mostly ranked 
as low quality coal/lignite containing high sulphur, 
ash content and high moisture. Even otherwise, 
industries generally require medium/high quality coal 

and meet this requirement through imported coal.

Considering the country’s economic situation, curbing 
imports to bring down the trade deficit is one of the 
government’s priorities, to which effect it has taken 
major steps, such as increase in import duties and other 
taxes. These measures have led to declining growth 
along with a slowdown in demand for imports, especially 
in machinery and transport categories. Nevertheless, 
PIBTL has remained largely unaffected, owing to the 
fact that the customer base of the company is primarily 
comprised of Energy and Cement Sectors, which have 
maintained decent growth due to sustained demand.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company relies on internal and external risk 
identification methods and constantly develops 
strategies to mitigate these long term and short term 
risks. The operational risk management plan of the 
Company includes strategies for risk reduction through 
sustainable equipment and infrastructure maintenance 
by investing in reliable methods of cargo handling. 
Details of the Company’s financial risk management are 
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

CREDIT RATING

Credit rating is an assessment of the credit standing 
of entities in Pakistan. During the year, The Pakistan 
Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) awarded long-
term and short-term rating at A- and A2 respectively for 
the Company with the outlook to the rating assigned 
as “Stable”.

FINANCIAL MATTERS

The Board of Directors of the Company, in their 
meeting held on May 28, 2018 approved increase 
in issued, subscribed and paid up capital from 
PKR 14,859,959,000 divided in 1,485,995,900 
ordinary shares to PKR 17,860,927,720 divided 
in 1,786,092,772 ordinary shares by issue of 
300,096,872 shares by way of right issue at the 
rate of 20.195 shares for every 100 ordinary shares. 
Subsequently, the entire process of allotment of right 
shares was completed on August 31, 2018. The 
Directors express their gratitude to our Shareholders 
in the general public and the Institutional Investors in 
the Company.
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The pending legal matters and their probable exposure 
to the Company is disclosed in note 17 to the financial 
statements. The management believes based on the 
advice of its legal counsel that the eventual outcome of 
these matters will be in favour of the Company.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year, the operational performance of the 
Company resulted in positive contribution margins and 
EBITDA owing to consistent volume growth. However, 
the Company has posted net loss before taxation 
which is mainly due to depreciation, amortization, 
finance cost and impact of currency devaluation on 
USD denominated foreign loans. During the year, 
the Company has also provided for taxation of Rs. 
100.054 million and recognized deferred tax of Rs. 
216.284 million, mainly on account of accelerated tax 
depreciation.

Financial highlights of your Company for the year as 
compared to last year are presented below:

PKR in ‘000
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018

Revenue – net 8,004,395 1,960,607
Gross Profit / (Loss) 2,256,968 (816,781)
Loss before tax (2,493,331) (3,213,535)
Taxation 116,229 578,965
Net Loss (2,377,102) (2,634,570)

(Restated)
Loss per Share (LPS) (Rs. 1.37) (Rs. 1.7)

CONTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMY

It’s worth mentioning that ~35% of your Company’s 
revenue goes to Port Qasim Authority in terms of 
royalty payments which amounted to Rs. 2,644 million 
this year. Further, contribution to national exchequer 
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in lieu of income tax, sales tax and other government 
levies amounted to Rs. 983 million this year.

APPROPRIATION

The Board of directors has not recommended any 
dividends and / or bonus for the financial year 2019 due 
to losses reported during the year as explained in the 
preceding paragraph. Moreover, this recommendation 
is in line with the overall financing plan shared with the 
investors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into are at arm’s 
length basis which were reviewed and approved by the 
Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors of 
your Company in compliance with the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 and 
the requirements of the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Act, 2017. The 
Company maintains a thorough and complete record 
of all such transactions. The details of related party 
transactions are disclosed in note 26 of the financial 
statements of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL 
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors of your Company are aware of their 
of responsibilities under the Code of Corporate 
Governance, the listing requirements of Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting 
framework of Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan and confirm that throughout the year 2018-19 
the following has been complied with:

•	 The financial statements, prepared by the 
management of the Company, present fairly its 
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity.

•	 Proper books of account have been maintained by 
the Company.

•	 Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based 
on reasonable and prudent judgment.

•	 International Accounting Standards, as applicable 
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 
financial statements.

•	 The system of internal control is sound in design 
and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored with which the Directors concur.

•	 There has been no material departure from the 
best practices of corporate governance as per 
Regulations.

•	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern.

•	 There is no purchase/sale of shares of the company 
by its directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary 
and their spouses and minor children. Pattern of 
shareholding has been given separately.

•	 Detail of shares held by associated undertakings 
and related persons (has been given separately).

•	 Statement of the Board meetings held during the 
year and attendance by each director.

•	 Key financial data for last six years (has been given 
separately).

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors has established an efficient 
system of internal financial controls, for ensuring effective 
and efficient conduct of operations, safeguarding of 
Company assets, compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations and reliable financial reporting. The 
independent Internal Audit function of PIBT regularly 
appraises and monitors the implementation of financial 
controls, whereas the Audit Committee reviews the 
effectiveness of the internal control framework and 
financial statements on quarterly basis.

PROVIDENT FUND

Your Company provides retirement benefit to its 
employees. This includes a contributory Provident Fund 
for all permanent employees. The value of investments 
of provident fund based on their un-audited accounts 
as on June 30, 2019 was Rs. 91.795 million.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of two (02) Independent Director, 
two (02) Executive Directors and three (03) Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board reviewed Company’s strategic 
direction, annual corporate plans and targets, and is 
committed to ensuring the highest standard of governance. 
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During the year five (05) meetings of the Board of 
Directors were held. Attendance by the Directors is as 
follows:

Name of
Directors

Meetings
attended

Captain Haleem A. Siddiqui 03
Mr. Sharique A. Siddiqui 05
Mr. Aasim A. Siddiqui 05
Syed Nizam A. Shah 05
Captain Zafar Iqbal Awan 05
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui 04
Mr. M. Masood Ahmed Usmani 05

TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Your Company ensures that all the Directors of the 
Board comply with the requirements of Directors 
Training Certification as per the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017. All of your 
directors have either obtained the Certification under 
Director’s Training Program conducted by local and 
foreign institutes or are exempt from such requirement.

EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR THE BOARD

Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the 
performance of the Board of our Company is evaluated 
regularly along the following parameters:

•	 Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active 
participation of members.

•	 Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the 
management.

•	 Ability to provide guidance and direction to the 
Company.

•	 Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s 
performance requiring action.

•	 Review of succession planning of management.

•	 Ability to assess and understand the risk exposures 
of the Company.

•	 Contribution and interest in regard to improving 
health safety and environment, employment and 
other policies and practices in the Company.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

The overall performance of the Board measured on 
the basis of above-mentioned parameters for the year 
was satisfactory. A separate report by the Chairman on 
Board’s overall performance, as required under section 
192 of the Companies Act, 2017 is attached with this 
Annual Report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has approved a “Remuneration 
Policy for Directors and Members of Senior” i-e 
Chairman, non-executive directors and independent 
directors are entitled only for the fee for attending the 
meetings. The levels of remuneration are appropriate 
and commensurate with the level of responsibility and 
expertise to govern the company successfully and with 
value addition.

The Article of Association of the Company permits 
Board of Directors to determine and approve the 
remuneration of a director for attending meetings of the 
Board of Directors or its Committees from time to time.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audit Committee (AC) assists the Board in fulfilling 
its oversight responsibilities, primarily in reviewing 
and reporting financial and non-financial information 
to share-holders, systems of internal control and 
risk management and the audit process. It has the 
autonomy to call for information from management and 
to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors 
as considered appropriate.

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee 
(HRC) meets to review and recommend all elements 
of the compensation, organization and employee 
development policies relating to the senior executives’ 
remuneration and to approve all matters relating to the 
remunerations of the executive directors and members 
of the management committee.

After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committees 
report to the Board with relevant approvals and 
recommendations.

During the year four (04) meetings of the Audit 
Committee and four (04) meetings of the Human 
Resource & Remuneration Committee were held. 
Attendance by the members is as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Name of AC members AC Meetings 
attended

Syed Nizam A. Shah 04
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui 03
Mr. M. Masood Ahmed Usmani 04
Syed Nizam A. Shah 04
Mr. Sharique A. Siddiqui 04
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui 04

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered 
Accountants retire and being eligible they have offered 
themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee has 
recommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors 
for the year ending June 30, 2020 and the Board agrees 
to the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

CODE OF ETHICS & BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

The Board has adopted the Statement of Ethics and 
Business Principles, which is signed and acknowledged 
by all the Directors and employees of your Company 
who are required to abide by the Code.

GREEN OPERATIONS

PIBT is the first handling facility to comply with World 
Bank’s standards of environment pollution control. In 
this respect, PIBT has developed an Environmental 
Management Plan (EMP) in compliance with applicable 
laws & regulations of Pakistan, IFC’s performance 
standards and World Bank Group Environment Health 
& Safety Guidelines. 

Key aspects of the EMP are:

•	 Dust emission control
•	 Noise pollution control
•	 Waste water management
•	 Solid waste Management
•	 Dredge material disposal Management
•	 Biodiversity conservation & sustainable natural 

resources management

These aspects of the EMP and the related regulations 
etc. had been forwarded to and agreed upon with the 
Civil Works and Equipment Supply Contractor(s), and 
have been implemented over the course of construction 
of the terminal, and are monitored and updated regularly.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The development of an enterprise is inextricably linked 
to the welfare and well-being of the people associated 
with it. Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited 
embraces responsibility for the impact of its activities on 
the environment, employers, communities and all other 
stakeholders of the public sphere.

–	 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

As part of its Corporate Social Responsibility Program, the 
Company is striving towards the objective of protection 
and long term viability of the coastal ecosystems, 
especially mangroves of the northern creeks of the 
Indus delta (the area controlled by Port Qasim Authority) 
through restoration of the degraded mangroves forests in 
the Indus Delta. As part of its commitment, the Company 
arranges regular maintenance for conservation of the 
plantation at an area of 500 hectares within Port Qasim 
jurisdiction through engaging local community laborers. 
In addition to that, the Company has started plantation 
and maintenance of mangroves alongside the trestle 
area on site which will support the dust emission control 
plan and help sustain the ecosystems of the area.

The Company has also become the founder member 
of “Karachi Conservation”, a national initiative driven by 
IUCN (International Union for Conservation of Nature) in 
collaboration with PQA and the private sector with the 
objective of promoting biodiversity and environmental 
conservation in Karachi in general and Port Qasim Area 
in particular.

–	 EDUCATION

PIBT believes that investing in education can empower 
communities and to provide opportunities to better 
serve the interests of the country. In line with the vision, 
PIBT has partly adopted a Government Primary School 
in Rerhi Goth area near terminal premises whereby 
the Company provides for uniform, school bags and 
stationary to 150 enrolled students along with the 
appointment of teaching staff and basic clean water 
facilities.

–	 HEALTHCARE

In efforts to provide sustainable healthcare services 
to the local community, the Company in collaboration 
with the locals, maintains clinic in Rerhi Goth area 
and provides free-of-cost consultation, treatment and 
medicines to almost 500 patients monthly.
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Directors’ Report
Moreover, the Company consequently organized The 
Indus Hospital (TIH) Voluntary Blood Donation Drive at 
the terminal in support of TIH’s commitment to launch 
Pakistan’s first centralized blood center and overall 
vision of providing excellent healthcare free of cost. The 
employees’ participation was encouraging as many of 
them were excited to contribute to community service 
through blood donation.

–	 RURAL DEVELOPMENT

As a part of Company’s community service initiatives, 
the Company has constructed a platform at the coast 
of creek in the Rerhi Goth area to serve the purpose of 
community recreation and area development.

PIBT constantly pursues social uplift projects in local 
communities adjacent to Port Qasim Area.

AKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors take this opportunity to express their 
gratitude to all the stakeholders for their confidence, 
continued support and commitment to the company. 
We would like to thank our valued shareholders in 
the general public, the Institutional Investors in the 
Company, Foreign and Local Lenders for investing 
confidence among all the stakeholders of the company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sharique Azim Siddiqui	 Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan
Chief Executive Officer	 Director

Karachi: September 02, 2019
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Market Capitalization, Share Price 
and Volume Data
The following table shows the monthly high, low and closing share prices of the Company and the volume of 
shares traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited during the financial year ended June 30, 2019:

Months Highest  
--------------------

Lowest  
------- (Rs.) -------

Closing  
--------------------

No. of shares 
traded

Market 
Capitalization in 

value* 
Rs’000

Jul-18 13.35 10.40 13.20  115,755,500  19,838,045 
Aug-18 14.33 12.35 12.39  88,048,000  25,594,709 
Sep-18 12.70 10.62 10.70   53,740,500  22,683,378 
Oct-18 13.07 7.81 12.93  157,352,000  23,344,233 
Nov-18 13.10 11.50 11.68  127,002,500  23,397,815 
Dec-18 11.63 10.52 11.18  46,120,000  20,772,259 
Jan-19 12.83 10.77 12.58  128,130,500  22,915,570 
Feb-19 12.97 9.40 10.73  108,651,500  23,165,623 
Mar-19 10.99 9.49 9.79  42,179,500  19,629,160 
Apr-19 10.47 8.63 9.92  57,348,500  18,700,391 
May-19 10.00 7.50 8.92  90,679,500  17,860,928 
Jun-19 9.00 8.00 8.44  46,407,500  16,074,835 

*  Based on highest price
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Highlights FY - 2019

COAL HANDLED
8.5 MILLION
(TONS)

REVENUE
Rs. 8.0 BILLION

 308% YoY

PROFIT FROM                      
OPERATION
Rs. 1.2 BILLION

 263% YoY

NET LOSS
Rs. 2.4 BILLION

 10% YoY

CONTRIBUTION 
TO NATIONAL 
EXCHEQUER
Rs. 3.6 BILLION

CAPACITY
UTILIZATION                          
71%

EBITDA
Rs. 3.3 BILLION

 2424% YoY

GROSS PROFIT 
Rs. 2.3 BILLION

 376% YoY
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Six Years at a Glance
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

 QUANTITATIVE DATA 
 Quantity Handled (Qty. in tons)  8,553,410  2,745,048  -  -  -  - 

 -------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------------------
 FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY 

 Non-Current Assets  27,181,946  27,753,880  25,489,369  16,871,219  6,416,287  4,064,542 
 Current Assets  2,694,782  1,404,317  3,036,569  2,427,049  1,411,245  2,526,345 
 Total Assets  29,876,728  29,158,197  28,525,938  19,298,268  7,827,532  6,590,887 
 Share Capital and Reserves  12,911,262  12,322,376  14,956,945  12,776,921  7,621,213  6,565,783 
 Non-Current Liabilities  13,558,568  12,476,160  12,429,909  6,034,041  159,329  8,278 
 Current Liabilities  3,406,898  4,359,661  1,139,084  487,306  46,990  16,826 
 Total Equity & Liabilities  29,876,728  29,158,197  28,525,938  19,298,268  7,827,532  6,590,887 

 VERTICAL ANALYSIS - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 Non-Current Assets 91% 95% 89% 87% 82% 62%
 Current Assets 9% 5% 11% 13% 18% 38%
 Total Assets 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
 Share Capital and Reserves 43% 42% 52% 66% 97% 100%
 Non-Current Liabilities 45% 43% 44% 31% 2% 0%
 Current Liabilities 11% 15% 4% 3% 1% 0%
 Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

 HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 2019 vs 
2018

2018 vs 
2017

2017 vs 
2016

2016 vs 
2015

2015 vs 
2014

2014 vs
2013

 Non-Current Assets -2% 9% 51% 163% 58% 28%
 Current Assets 92% -54% 25% 72% -44% 2780%
 Total Assets 2% 2% 48% 147% 19% 103%
 Share Capital and Reserves 5% -18% 17% 68% 16% 1172%
 Non-Current Liabilities 9% 0% 106% 3687% 1825% -100%
 Current Liabilities -22% 283% 134% 937% 179% -97%
 Total Equity & Liabilities 2% 2% 48% 147% 19% 100%

 CASH FLOW 

 Net Cash (used in) / generated from Operating Activities  (1,459,975)  (418,424)  (1,287,111)  1,014,483  248,532  (643,614)
 Net cash (used in) / generated from Investing Activities  (352,008)  (1,151,708)  (8,503,338)  (10,581,545)  (2,311,584)  (792,333)
 Net cash (used in) / generated from Financing Activities  2,010,599  (191,001)  9,481,415  10,354,376  947,456  3,925,496 
 (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Bank Balance  198,616  (1,761,133)  (309,034)  787,314  (1,115,596)  2,498,549 
 Cash and Bank Balance at beginning of the Year  127,270  1,888,403  2,197,437  1,410,123  2,525,719  27,170 
 Cash and Bank Balance at end of the Year  325,886  127,270  1,888,403  2,197,437  1,410,123  2,525,719 

 PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY* 
 -------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------------------

 Turnover - net  8,004,395  1,960,607  -  -  -  - 
 Gross Profit / (Loss)  2,256,968  (816,781)  -  -  -  - 
 Operating Profit  1,842,150  (1,132,267)
 Other Income  236,452  49,734  128,921  112,307  181,040  6,068 
 Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation  (2,493,331)  (3,213,535)  48,400  56,383  126,901  (27,769)
 Profit / (Loss) After Taxation  (2,377,102)  (2,634,570)  26,858  35,060  81,381  (16,868)

* As the Company commenced its commercial operations from July 3, 2017.
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Financial Performance
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Description 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Quantitative Data:
Quantity Handled (Qty. in tons)  8,553,410  2,745,048  -  -  -  - 

Profitability Ratios* :
Gross profit / (loss) Ratio  0.28  (0.42)  -  -  -  - 
EBITDA Margin to Sales  0.41  0.07  -  -  -  - 
Operating Leverage Ratio  2.26  (0.77)  -  -  -  - 
Net Loss Before Tax to Turnover  (0.31)  (1.64)  -  -  -  - 
Net Loss After Tax to Turnover  (0.30)  (1.34)  -  -  -  - 
Return on Capital Employed  0.07  (0.05)  -  -  -  - 

Liquidity Ratios:
Current Ratio  0.79  0.32  2.67  4.98  30.03  150.15 
Quick / Acid Test Ratio  0.41  0.12  1.87  4.54  30.02  150.15 
Cash to Current Liabilities  0.13  0.05  1.75  4.51  30.01  150.11 
Cash flow from Operations to Sales  0.15  0.13  -  -  -  - 

Investment / Market Ratios:
Loss per Share (Before Tax)  (1.43)  (2.11)  0.03  0.05  0.17  (0.19)
Loss per Share (After Tax)  (1.37)  (1.73)  0.02  0.03  0.11  (0.11)
Price Earnings Ratio  (6.16)  (6.55)  1,137.50  1,069.00  327.82  (270.82)
Market Value per Share** Closing  8.44  11.35  22.75  32.07  36.06  29.79 

High  14.33  25.48  39.70  43.15  42.85  145.99 
Low  7.50  10.72  21.80  24.15  19.30  20.08 

Break-up Value per Share  7.23  8.29  10.07  10.06  10.05  9.15 

Capital Structure Ratios: 
Gearing Ratio 0.51 0.50 0.44 0.27 - -
Weighted Average Cost of Debt  0.10  0.09 0.08 0.08
Debts to Equity Ratio  1.17  1.08  0.83  0.40  -  - 

Activity / Turnover Ratios:
Total Assets Turnover Ratio  0.27  0.07  -  -  -  - 
Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio  0.29  0.07  -  -  -  - 
Debtor Turnover (Days)  21.87  24.16  -  -  -  - 
Debtor Turnover (Times)  16.69  15.11  -  -  -  - 
Creditor Turnover*** (Days)  19.60  17.41  -  -  -  - 
Creditor Turnover*** (Times)  18.62  20.97  -  -  -  - 

*    As the Company commenced its commercial operations from July 3, 2017.

**  The Company was listed at the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited on December 23, 2013. The market value represents  
     closing rate of the Company’s share as at the close of financial year. 

*** Average trade and other payables are excluding contractors’ liabilities as disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Statement of Value Addition 
and Distribution of Wealth

Distribution of Wealth 2018-19

2018-19

To employees as remuneration 7%

To PQA as royalty 35%

To government as taxes 15%

To providers of finance as financial charges 24%

Utilized in business 18%

Statement of Value Addition and Distribution of Wealth

2018-19
Rupees in ‘000 %

Wealth Generated

Turnover (including taxes)  9,044,966 119.80%
Net expenses incurred for services  (1,731,431) -22.93%

 7,313,535 96.87%
Other operating income  236,452 3.13%

 7,549,987 100.00%

Distribution of Wealth

To employees as remuneration  550,674 7%
To PQA as royalty  2,647,655 35%
To government as taxes  1,140,626 15%
To providers of finance as financial charges  1,823,296 24%
Utilized in business  1,387,736 18%

 7,549,987 100%
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PIBT Events





Independence Day 
Celebration at the Terminal



APSA Cricket Tournament 
Awards Ceremony



Chairman PQA 
Visit to the Terminal





Fire Fighting Drill



Community Service 
Activities Medical 
Camp Sponsored 
By PIBT

Community Service 
Activities School 
Sponsored 
By PIBT



Terminal 
Infrastructure





Jetty





Silos





Belt 
Conveyor





Terminal 
Storage 
62 Acres





Statement of Compliance with Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are seven, all of them being male.

2.	 The composition of board is as follows:

Category Name

Independent Directors
Syed Nizam A. Shah
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui

Executive Directors
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui

Non - Executive Directors
Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui
Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan
Mr. M. Masood Ahmed Usmani

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4.	 The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.	 The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained.

6.	 All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with 
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8.	 The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9.	 The Board remained fully compliant with the provision with regard to their directors’ training program. Out of 
total of seven directors, three (03) director are exempt from training program as mentioned in regulation no. 20, 
sub-regulation 2 of the Regulations. Furthermore, remaining four (04) directors have already completed their 
trainings earlier.

10.	The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including 
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the 
Regulations.

11.	CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

for the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
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12.	The Board has formed Audit Committee comprising of members given below;

Name Chairman / Member Category

Syed Nizam A. Shah Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui Member Independent Director
Mr. M. Masood Ahmed Usmani Member Non - Executive Director

13.	The Board has formed Human Resources and Remuneration Committee comprising of members given below;

Name Chairman / Member Category
Syed Nizam A. Shah Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui Member Independent Director
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui Member Executive Director

14.	The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

15.	The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following;

a)	 Audit Committee: Four (04) quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2019
b)	 Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: Four (04) meetings during the year ended June 30, 2019

16.	The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function that are considered suitably qualified and experienced 
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

17.	The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or 
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that 
the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on 
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

18.	The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

19.	We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Capt. Haleem Ahmed Siddiqui
Chairman
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report 
To the members of Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited (the 
Company) Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Pakistan International 
Bulk Terminal Limited for the year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of 
the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the  
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the 
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s 
personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks. 

The  Regulations  require  the  Company  to  place  before  the  Audit  Committee,  and  upon  
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its 
related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 
2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the 
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not 
carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and 
that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements 
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: September 23, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s 
Report
To the members of Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best 
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows 
and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity 
for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 
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Following are the key audit matters: 

S No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Contingencies

As referred in note 17.1 to the financial statements, 
the Company has filed several petitions challenging 
the demands in respect of sales tax and income 
tax by the revenue authorities. These demands are 
based on a range of tax issues such as levy of sales 
tax on import of plant, machinery and equipment and 
on services on royalty, levy of income tax on import 
of plant, machinery and equipment and adjustment 
of input tax.

Due to the significance of the amounts involved 
in such matters and the inherent uncertainties in 
respect of their ultimate outcome, the management 
judgements and estimates in relation to such 
contingencies may be complex and can significantly 
impact the financial statements. For such reasons 
we have considered the contingencies as a key audit 
matter.

Our key audit procedures in respect of contingent 
tax liabilities included, amongst others, a review 
of the correspondence of the Company with 
the relevant authorities, tax advisors and legal 
advisors, including judgments or orders passed by 
the competent authorities in relation to the issues 
involved or matters which have similarities with the 
issues involved.

We obtained and reviewed confirmations from the 
Company’s external advisors for their views on 
the legal position of the Company in relation to the 
contingent tax matters.

We involved our internal tax professionals to assess 
management’s conclusions on contingent tax 
matters and to evaluate the consistency of such 
conclusions with the views of the external tax 
advisors engaged by the Company.

We also evaluated the adequacy of disclosures 
made in respect of the contingent tax liabilities in 
accordance with the requirements of the financial 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the  financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting  
	estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017); 

b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity and together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with 
the books of account and returns; 

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and 

d)	 no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tariq Feroz Khan. 

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: September 23, 2019
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As at June 30, 2019
Statement of Financial Position

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 25,908,478 26,679,521
Intangible assets 6 366,576 383,751
Deferred tax 7 906,892 690,608

27,181,946 27,753,880
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 8 125,054 28,406
Trade debts – unsecured 9 699,682 259,529
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable 10  264,110 44,625
Sales tax refundable 11 221,703 461,967
Taxation – net 953,547 377,720
Cash and bank balances 12 430,686 232,070

2,694,782 1404,317

TOTAL ASSETS 29,876,728 29,158,197

SHARE CAPITAL  AND  RESERVES

Authorised capital
2,000,000,000 (2018: 2,000,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 20,000,000 20,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
1,786,092,772 (2018: 1,485,995,900) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 13 17,860,928 14,859,959
Accumulated losses (4,949,666) (2,537,583)

12,911,262 12,322,376

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing - secured 14 13,523,138 12,449,253
Staff compensated absences 15 35,430 26,907

13,558,568 12,476,160
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 16 1,751,970 1,903,161
Current maturity of long term financing - secured 14 1,586,915 884,541
Current maturity of retention money - EPC contractor         - 982,189
Accrued interest on long term financing 68,013 589,770

3,406,898 4,359,661
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 29,876,728 29,158,197

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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For the year ended June 30, 2019
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Revenue – net 18 8,004,395 1,960,607
        

Cost of services 19 (5,747,427) (2,777,388)

Gross profit / (loss) 2,256,968 (816,781)

Administrative and general expenses 20 (414,818) (315,486)

Other income 21 236,452 49,734

Finance cost (1,823,296) (1,264,601)

Other expense – exchange loss (2,748,637) (866,401)

Loss before taxation (2,493,331) (3,213,535)

Taxation 22 116,229 578,965

Net loss for the year (2,377,102) (2,634,570)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (2,377,102)  (2,634,570)

(Restated)

Loss per share 23 (Rs. 1.37) (Rs. 1.70)

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019
Statement of Cash Flows

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation (2,493,331) (3,213,535)
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation 5.1 1,212,757 1,194,416
Amortization 6 19,729 19,308
Finance cost 1,823,296 1,264,601
Unrealized exchange loss 2,392,110 861,698
Staff compensated absences 15 10,412 10,027
Liabilities no longer payable, written back 21 (134,918)            -
Gain on sale of fixed assets 21 (809) (945)

5,322,577 3,349,105

Decrease / (Increase) in current assets
Stores and spares (96,649) (28,406)
Trade debts – unsecured (440,153) (259,529)
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable (219,486) 85,772
Sales tax refundable 240,265 193,035
Bank balance under lien - 1,000

(516,023) (8,128)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (169,141) 120,649
Current maturity of retention money - EPC contractor (982,189)                -

Cash generated from operations 1,161,893 248,091

Taxes paid (675,882) (145,261)
Finance cost paid (1,944,098) (520,752)
Staff compensated absences paid 15 (1,888) (502)

Net cash used in operating activities (1,459,975) (418,424)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment (352,977) (1,142,873)
Additions to intangible assets 6          - (11,050)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 969 2,215

Net cash used in investing activities (352,008) (1,151,708)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares 13 3,000,969             -
Cost on issuance of right shares (34,980)             -
Repayment of from long term financing - secured       (955,390) (191,001)

Net cash generated / (used in) from financing activities 2,010,599 (191,001)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 198,616 (1,761,133)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 127,270 1,888,403

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12.1 325,886 127,270

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019
Statement of Changes In Equity 

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital

Revenue 
reserve – 

(accumulated   
losses)

Total

--------------------(Rupees in ‘000)--------------------

Balance as at June 30, 2017 14,859,959 96,986 14,956,945

Net loss for the year - (2,634,570) (2,634,570)

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (2,634,570) (2,634,570)

Balance as at June 30, 2018 14,859,959 (2,537,584) 12,322,375

Issue of right shares - note 13.1 3,000,969 - 3,000,969

Cost on issuance of right shares - (34,980) (34,980)

Net loss for the year - (2,377,102) (2,377,102)

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (2,377,102) (2,377,102)

Balance as at June 30, 2019  17,860,928    (4,949,666)   12,911,262 

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements

1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS				  
					   
1.1.	 Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited (the Company) was incorporated under the repealed Companies 

Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on March 22, 2010 as a private limited company. 
Subsequently, it was converted to an unquoted public limited company and later on, listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange on December 23, 2013.

1.2.	 The Company had entered into a Build Operate Transfer (BOT) contract with Port Qasim Authority (PQA) on 
November 06, 2010 for the construction, development, operations and management of a coal and clinker / 
cement terminal at Port Muhammad Bin Qasim for a period of thirty years. After the expiry date, the Company 
will transfer all the concession assets to PQA as disclosed in note 27 to these financial statements.

2.	 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESS OF BUSINESS UNITS
			 

Registered office The Company’s registered office is situated at 2nd floor, Business Plaza, Mumtaz Hassan 
Road, Karachi.

Terminal The Company’s terminal is situated at NWIZ/LL/02, North Western Industrial Zone, Port 
Qasim Authority.

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION
	
3.1.	 Statement of compliance

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

	 -	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

	 -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Act have been followed.

	 The Securities Exchange Commission Of Pakistan (SECP) vide its SRO No. 24 (1) / 2012 dated January 
16, 2012 has granted waiver in respect of application of IFRIC 12 due to practical difficulties faced by the 
companies. The impact on financial results of the Company due to application of IFRIC 12 is disclosed in note 
27 to these financial statements accordingly, the Company has not applied IFRIC 12 “Service Concession 
Agreements” in preparation of these financial statements.

3.2.	 Accounting convention	
		
	 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

3.3.	 Significant accounting judgements and estimates
										        
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use 

of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process 
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

	 In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments and 
estimates which are significant to the financial statements:
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Notes

• determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
and intangibles.

4.1, 4.2, 5 and 6

• expected credit loss against trade debts 4.7.2 and 9
• provision for tax and deferred tax 4.8, 7 and 22
• expected outcome of contingencies involving the Company 17

	  
3.4.	 Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to financial statements
										        
	 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those 

of the previous financial year except as described below: 

3.4.1.	New standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations
	
	 The Company has adopted the following standards, amendments and improvements of International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which became effective for the current year:
	

IFRS 2 Share-based Payments: Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payments 
Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

	 Improvements to IFRSs Issued by IASB in December 2016
	
	 IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Clarification that measuring investees at fair value 

through profit or loss in an investment-by-investment choice.
	
	 The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to IFRSs did not have any effect on 

these financial statements, except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as explained below:
	
	 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
	
	 The Company has applied IFRS 9 using modified retrospective approach with initial application date of July 

01, 2018 as notified by the SECP. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial 
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. The adoption of IFRS 9 
has fundamentally changed the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s 
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

	
	 The management of the Company has assessed and concluded that the Company is in compliance with 

the requirements of IFRS 9 and the impact of adoption of IFRS 9 on the classification and carrying amounts 
of the financial assets is immaterial. The new accounting policy in respect of financial instruments and 
impairment of financial assets is stated in note 4.7 to these financial statements respectively.

	 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
	
	 The Company has applied IFRS 15 using modified retrospective approach with initial application date of 

July 01, 2018 as notified by the SECP. IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and IAS 18 
“Revenue” as well as related interpretations. The first-time application of IFRS 15 has not had any significant 
effects with regard to the amount of revenue recognised and when it is recognised. 

	
	 The management of the Company has assessed and concluded that the Company is in compliance with the 

requirements of IFRS 15. The new accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is stated in note 4.11 
to these financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements

3.4.2.	Standards, amendments and improvements to IFRSs that are not yet effective
	
	 The following standards, amendments and improvements with respect to the IFRSs as applicable in Pakistan 

would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Standards or Amendments Effective date (annual 
periods beginning on 

or after)
IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2020

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Previously held interests in a joint 
operation

January 01, 2019

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) January 01, 2019

IFRS 10 /
IAS 28

Consolidated Financial Statements and Investment in Associates 
and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

Not yet finalized

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Previously held interests in a joint operation January 01, 2019

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019

IAS 1 / 
IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) January 01, 2020

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of payments on financial 
instruments classified as equity

January 01, 2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) January 01, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation January 01, 2019

IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 
(Amendments)

January 01, 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

	 The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’s 
financial statements in the period of initial application. 

	
	 In addition to the above standards, amendments and improvements to various IFRSs have also been issued 

by the IASB in December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning 
on or after January 01, 2019 respectively. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards 
will not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

	
	 The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual 

Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for 
preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. 
The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any 
standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB 
in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable 
standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

	 Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the 
purpose of applicability in Pakistan. The management of the Company expects that below new standards 
will not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Standards 
IASB effective date 

(annual periods 
beginning on or after)

IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

4.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Operating fixed assets
 	
	 Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any.

	 Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method whereby costs of assets, 
less their residual values are written off over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified in note 5.1 to 
the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available 
to use upto the month preceding the month of disposal. Assets residual values, useful lives and methods 
are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

	 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for indication 
that an asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any such indication exists and 
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units 
are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is 
the greater of net selling price and value in use.

	 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major 
renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic 
benefits will flow to the Company.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds 
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included in the statement of profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise.

	 Capital work-in-progress
	
	 These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific 

assets incurred during installation and construction period, including advances to suppliers and contractors, 
are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available 
for use.

4.2.	 Intangible assets
 	
	 An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. 

	 Intangible assets are initially stated at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization 
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and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs incurred on the acquisition of computer software are 
capitalized and are amortized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life. Amortization is charged 
in the month in which the asset is put to use at the rates stated in note 6 to the financial statements. 

	 Development expenditure incurred on the project is capitalized when its future recoverability can reasonably 
be regarded as assured. These are amortized over their useful life on straight line basis commencing from 
the date of completion of the project, on a monthly pro-rata basis.

	 Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

	 The carrying value of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date when events or 
changes in circumstances, indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

4.3.	 Stores and spares

	 Stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using 
weighted average cost basis except for those in transit which are stated at invoice price plus other charges 
paid thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made annually in the financial statements for slow moving 
and obsolete items if required.

4.4.	 Trade debts

	 Trade debts originated by the Company are recognised and carried at original invoice amounts less provision 
for expected credit losses (ECL). Provision for ECL has been discussed in note 4.7.2. Bad debts are written-
off when identified.

	
4.5.	 Advances, deposits and other receivable
	
	 Advances and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest rate method. Provision is made on the basis of lifetime ECLs that result from 
all possible default events over the expected life of the advances, deposits and other receivables. 

4.6.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and cash at 
banks, excluding balances under lien.

4.7.	 Financial Instruments
		
	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another entity.
	
4.7.1.	Financial assets 

a)	 Initial recognition and measurement
	
	 The financial assets of the Company mainly include trade debts, deposits, other receivable and cash and 
	 bank balances.
	
	 Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value 

through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the 
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Based 
on the business model of the Company, the financial assets of the Company are measured and classified 
under IFRS 9.
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	 Trade debts and other financial assets previously classified as ‘loans and receivables’ are now classified as 

‘amortised cost’. These assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less 
an allowance for expected credit losses, if any.

b)	 Subsequent measurement
	
	 Financial assets at amortised cost - These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any.

	 Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit or 
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

	
4.7.2.	Impairment of financial assets
	
	 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new 

impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt 
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

	
	 ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and 

all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation 
to the asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

	 A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash 
flows. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when 
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual 
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.

	 At each date of reporting, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial 
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised 
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the respective asset.

	
	 The Company uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL on its 

financial assets. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the financial assets and the economic 
environment.

4.7.3.	Financial Liabilities

	 There are no changes in classification and measurement for the Company’s financial liabilities on the adoption 
of IFRS 9.

	
	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
	
	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the 
criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through 
profit or loss.
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	 Loans and borrowings 
	
	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement 
of profit or loss.  

4.7.4.	Offsetting of financial instruments
	
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 

position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and 
expenses arising from such assets and liabilities are also offset accordingly.

4.7.5.	Impairment of non-financial assets
	
	 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are assessed at 

date of reporting to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognised, as an expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting 
of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

								      
4.8.	 Taxation							     
												          
	 Current							     
	
	 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into 

account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate Corporate Tax 
whichever is higher; and includes adjustment to charge for prior years, if any. 

	
	 Deferred							     
	
	 Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising 

at the reporting date, between the tax bases of the assets and the liabilities and their carrying amounts. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the 
extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which these can be 
utilised.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the  extent 
that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be recognized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset 
to be recovered.     

	
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that expected to apply to the period when 

the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.  
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4.9.	 Staff retirement benefits							     
												          
	 Defined contribution plan
	
	 The Company operates a funded provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal monthly 

contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic 
salary.

	 Compensated absences
	
	 The Company provides a facility to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leave under an 
	 unfunded scheme.

	 Provisions are made to cover the obligation under the scheme on accrual basis and are charged as an 
expense. Accrual for compensated absences for employees is calculated on the basis of two month’s gross 
salary. The amount of liability recognized in the statement of financial position is calculated by the Company 
using the above basis as the difference in liability is not expected to be material using the Projected Unit 
Credit method.

4.10.	 Trade and other payables							    
												          
	 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be 

paid in future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company.

4.11.	 Revenue from contract with customers
		
	 According to IFRS-15, revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to a 

customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when, or as the customer obtains control of 
the goods or services.

	 Revenue from port operations is recognized at the point in time when the service is rendered to the customer. 

	 Revenue represents net invoice value including fixed and variable consideration wherever applicable. 
Variable consideration arises on revenue which is said to be recognized at the point in time when the service 
is rendered to the customer whereas variable consideration arises on services as a result of discounts 
and allowances. Revenue is not recognised in full until it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

4.12.	 Other income							     
								      
	 Profit on saving accounts is recognised on accrual basis.						    

	
4.13.	 Borrowing Costs							     
								      
	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred 

during the period in connection with the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended 
use are capitalised as a part of the cost of related asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.14.	 Provisions							     
												          
	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each 
statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.15.	 Foreign currency translations
	
	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupee (functional currency) using the exchange 

rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-
translated into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position. 
Exchange differences are taken to statement of profit or loss.

								      
4.16.	 Functional and presentation currency
												          
	 Theses financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation 

currency.

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 25,671,133  26,614,209
Capital work-in-progress 5.2 237,345  65,312 

25,908,478 26,679,521

5.1. Operating fixed assets:

Cost Accumulated depreciation
Net book 

value Useful life

As at
July 01,
 2018

Additions/ 
(disposals)

As at
June 30,

2019

As at
July 01,

2018

Charge for 
the

year / 
(disposals)

As at
June 30, 

2019

As at
June 30,

2019
Years

------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------
Owned 
Port infrastructure 13,142,104 16,846 13.158.950 437,992 439,271 877,263 12,281,687 30
Leasehold improvements 3,847,123     7,677 3,854,800 128,237 128,749 256,986 3,597,814 30
Buildings 1,077,205 13,308 1,090,513 52,513 55,128 107,641 982,872 20
Cargo handling equipment 7,186,946     179,005 7,365,951 359,347 372,065 731,412 6,634,539 20
Port power generation 1,426,977     235 1,427,212 71,349 71,372 142,721 1,284,491 20
Terminal equipment 963,079 21,219 984,298 94,143 96,070 190,213 794,085 10
Vehicles 135,351 19,426 153,712 63,145 29,399 91,639 62,073 3 - 5

(1,065) (905)
Office equipment 57,212 5,151 62,363 27,659 12,640 40,299 22,064 3
Furniture and fixtures 24,682 6,974 31,656 12,085 8,063 20,148 11,508 3

2019 27,860,679 269,841 28,129,455 1,246,470 1,212,757 2,458,322 25,671,133
(1,065) (905)
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Cost Accumulated depreciation
Net book 

value Useful life

As at
July 01,
 2017

Additions/ 
(disposals)

As at
June 30, 

2018

As at
July 01,

2017

Charge for 
the

year / 
(disposals)

As at
June 30, 

2018

As at
June 30,

2018
Years

------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------
Owned 
Port infrastructure      - 13,142,104 13,142,104      - 437,992 437,992 12,704,112 30
Leasehold improvements      - 3,847,123 3,847,123      - 128,237 128,237 3,718,886 30
Buildings      - 1,077,205 1,077,205      - 52,513 52,513 1,024,692 20
Cargo handling equipment      - 7,186,946 7,186,946      - 359,347 359,347 6,827,599 20
Port power generation      - 1,426,977 1,426,977      - 71,349 71,349 1,355,628 20
Terminal equipment      - 963,079 963,079      - 94,143 94,143 868,936 10
Vehicles 113,967 28,811 135,351 42,627 26,781 63,145 72,206 3 - 5

(7,427) (6,263)
Office equipment 14,721 42,676 57,212 9,981 17,755 27,659 29,533 3

(185) (77)
Furniture and fixtures 5,786 18,896 24,682 5,786 6,299 12,085 12,597 3

2018 134,474 27,733,817 27,860,679 58,394 1,194,416 1,246,470 26,614,209
(7,612) (6,340)

5.1.1.	Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2019 2018
Note ------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

Cost of services 19 1,162,657 1,143,581
Administrative and general expenses 20 50,100 50,835

1,212,757 1,194,416

5.2.	 Capital work-in-progress

5.2.1.	Movement under capital work-in-progress:

Opening balance 65,312 25,008,470
Additions during the year 444,428 2,876,034
Transfers to operating fixed assets 5.1 (269,841) (27,733,817)
Transfers to intangible assets 6        (2,554) (85,375)
Closing balance 237,345 65,312

5.2.2.	Break up of capital work-in-progress as at year end: 			 

Civil works 101,505 1,500
Equipment advances 53,876 60,728
Vehicle advances 39,568 1,284
Mobilisation and other advances 42,396 1,800

237,345 65,312

Annual Report 2019 77



For the year ended June 30, 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost Accumulated amortization
Net book 

value
Useful 

life
As at

July 01,
2018

Additions
As at

 June 30, 
2019

As at
July 01,

2018

Charge
for the 
year

As at
June 30, 

2019

As at
June 30, 

2019
Years

---------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------

Right to use infrastructure facilities (Note 6.1) 386,104 - 386,104 79,297 10,580 89,877 296,227 30
Terminal operating system 85,035 - 85,035 8,498 8,503 17,001 68,034 10
Computer software 1,516 2,554 4,070 1,109 646 1,755 2,315 3
2019 472,655 2,554 475,209 88,904 19,729 108,633 366,576

Cost Accumulated amortization
Net book 

value Useful life
As at As at As at Charge As at As at Years

July 01, 
2017 Additions  June 30, 

2018
July 01, 

2017
for the 
year

June 30, 
2018

June 30, 
2018

---------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------

Right to use infrastructure facilities (Note 6.1) 386,104 - 386,104 68,717 10,580 79,297 306,807 30
Terminal operating system - 85,035 85,035     - 8,498 8,498 76,537 10
Computer software           1,176 340 1,516 879 230 1,109 407 3
2018 387,280 85,375 472,655 69,596 19,308 88,904 383,751

6.1.	 This represents Peripheral Development Charges (PDC) of leasehold land paid to Port Qasim Authority as 
per Build Operate Transfer (BOT) contract for the construction, development, operations and management 
of a coal and clinker / cement terminal at Port Muhammad Bin Qasim for a period of thirty years.

6.2.	 Amortization charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2019 2018
Note ------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

Cost of services 19 19,083 19,176
Administrative and general expenses 20 646 132

19,729 19,308

7. DEFERRED TAX

Arising on taxable temporary difference
  - accelerated depreciation (2,233,061) (1,627,270)

Arising on deductible temporary difference
  - tax losses 3,086,728 2,250,947
  - pre-commencement expenses  49,173 56,521
  - amortization 4,052 10,410

906,892 690,608

8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores 11,930 18,442
Spares 113,124 9,964

125,054 28,406
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2019 2018
Note ------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

9. TRADE DEBTS – unsecured

Considered good 9.1 699,682 259,529

9.1. The ageing of trade debts is as follows:

Up to 30 days 518,389 215,416
31 to 60 days 126,464 30,165
61 to 90 days 22,639 7,265
Over 90 days 32,190 6,683

699,682 259,529

10. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Advances 144,164 1,405
Deposits  77,313 2,331
Prepayments  35,301 39,741
Other receivables  7,332 1,148

264,110 44,625

11.	 SALES TAX REFUNDABLE 

	 Includes sales tax levies of Rs. 676.185 million as fully explained in note 17.1.1 which was charged and 
collected by the Government Authorities at the time of import of partial shipments of project equipment and 
sales tax of Rs. 10.4 million paid during the year as fully explained in note 17.1.2. 

	 Further, during the year Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) passed order directing Nazir of SHC to encash 
50% of the bank guarantee issued amounting to Rs. 355 million against sales tax which was furnished in 
suits mentioned in note 17.1.1. The above amounts have been adjusted with the corresponding tax liabilities 
drive from output sales tax.

2019 2018
Note ------- (Rupees in ‘000) -------

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With conventional banks:
   - in current accounts 13,358 30
   - in saving accounts 12.2 & 12.3 409,012 230,128

422,370 230,158

With islamic banks:
   - in saving account 12.2 3,722 594

426,092 230,752

Cash in hand 4,594 1,318
430,686 232,070

12.1. Cash and cash equivalent comprise of:

Cash and bank balances 430,686 232,070
Bank balance under lien 12.3 (104,800) (104,800)

325,886 127,270

12.2.	 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 4.5 to 10.7 percent (2018: 4.5 to 6.25 percent) per annum.
	
12.3.	 Bank balances of Rs.104.8 million were under lien with bank against letters of guarantee as described in 

note 17.2.4.
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13. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
fully paid in cash

1,485,995,900 1,485,995,900 Opening balance 14,859,959 14,859,959
300,096,872 - Issued during the year in cash 3,000,969 -

1,786,092,772 1,485,995,900 Closing balance 17,860,928 14,859,959

13.1.	 The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on May 28, 2018 approved increase in issued, 
subscribed and paid up capital from by issue of 300,096,872 shares by way of right issue at the rate of 
20.195 shares for every 100 ordinary shares. The entire process of allotment of right shares was completed 
on August 31, 2018.

13.2.	 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

13.3.  	The holding of related parties / major shareholders of the Company as at June 30 are as follows:

2019 2018 2019 2018
 ----%age holding----  --------Rupees in ‘000--------

Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited 43.30 43.30 7,733,359 6,434,011
International Finance Corporation 9.49 11.40 1,694,239 1,694,238
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 8.59 10.35 1,534,066 1,537,756

10,961,664 9,666,005

14.	 LONG TERM FINANCING – secured

2019 2018

Note Current 
Maturity Long Term Total Current 

Maturity Long Term Total

Foreign currency loans ------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------

Under finance facility agreements

International Finance Corporation 14.1 435,925  3,533,839 3,969,764 209,456 2,923,935 3,133,391
OPEC Fund For International Development 14.2 430,990  3,486,623 3,917,613 207,085 2,882,128 3,089,213

866,915 7,020,462 7,887,377 416,541 5,806,063 6,222,604

Local currency loans

Under commercial facility agreements

Conventional facility 14.3 390,000 3,522,187 3,912,187 253,500 3,598,394 3,851,894
Musharaka facility 14.4 330,000 2,980,489 3,310,489 214,500 3,044,796 3,259,296

720,000 6,502,676 7,222,676 468,000 6,643,190 7,111,190

1,586,915 13,523,138 15,110,053 884,541 12,449,253 13,333,794

14.1.	 The Company has entered into a loan agreement with International Finance Corporation (IFC) for an amount 
of USD 26.5 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from December 15, 2017, at a 
markup rate of 6 months’ LIBOR + 5% per annum.

14.2.	 The Company has entered into a loan agreement with OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID) for an 
amount of USD 26.2 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from December 15, 2017, 
at a markup rate of 6 months’ LIBOR + 5% per annum.
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14.3.	 The Company has entered into a Term Finance Facility with five commercial banks, namely Askari Bank 
Limited, JS Bank Limited, MCB Bank Limited, Sindh Bank Limited and The Bank of Punjab for an aggregate 
amount of Rs. 3,900 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from December 15, 2017, 
at a mark-up rate of 6 months KIBOR + 3% per annum. Faysal Bank Limited is acting as a syndicate agent for 
the agreement.

14.4.	 The Company has entered into a Musharaka agreement with four financial institutions namely Al Baraka 
Bank (Pakistan) Limited, Dubai Islamic Bank Limited, Faysal Bank Limited and Meezan Bank Limited for 
an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,300 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from 
December 15, 2017, at a markup rate of 6 months KIBOR + 3% per annum. Faysal Bank Limited is acting 
as a Musharaka agent for the agreement.

14.5.	 The Company may declare dividends subject to satisfaction of certain financial covenants under the facilities 
mentioned in notes 14.1 to 14.4.

14.6.	 The above long term loans (from notes 14.1 to 14.4) are secured, at 25% security margin, by way of the 
following charges ranking pari passu among the lenders:

(i)	 first ranking charge over mortgaged immovable properties 
(ii)	 first ranking charge over project hypothecated properties
(iii)	 first ranking lien over security account and deposits
(iv)	 assignment of the mortgaged project receivables

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

15. STAFF COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Opening balance 26,907  17,382 
Charge for the year 10,412  10,027 
Payments made during the year   (1,889)  (502)

35,430 26,907

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Contractors 1,339,209 1,698,648
Creditors 252,018 169,580
Accrued liabilities 16.1 109,996 31,217
Withholding tax payable 47,127 96
Workers’ Welfare Fund 3,620 3,620

1,751,970 1,903,161

16.1.	 Includes rent and IT support charges payable to Premier Merchantile Services (Private) Limited and Premier 
Software (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 461,472 and Rs. 113,000 respectively.

Annual Report 2019 81



For the year ended June 30, 2019
Notes to the Financial Statements

17.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

17.1	 CONTINGENCIES

17.1.1.	 During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company filed petition no.(s) 2262/2016 and 2535/2016 before 
the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC) challenging the levy of sales tax and income tax imposed against 
the import of plant, machinery and equipment. On October 26, 2016 and November 30, 2016 respectively, 
SHC granted stay orders against the above petitions directing the authorities to avoid any further coercive 
action against the Company, subject to provision of bank guarantee by the Company which the Company 
had duly provided. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company has filed supplementary petition 
no. 505/2018 before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SC) to the petitions filed above.

	 During the year, SHC passed orders directing the Nazir SHC to encash fifty percent (50%) of the bank 
guarantees, amounting to Rs. 355 million and Rs. 74.1 million in respect of sales tax and income tax 
respectively, furnished in suits mentioned above in lieu of the SC’s judgment in various appeals. The 
required payment was deposited with the respective authorities and adjustment of sales tax and income 
tax has been allowed as per applicable laws. The management believes, based on the advice of its legal 
advisor that the grounds on which sales tax and income tax are levied do not attract the provision of 
Sales Tax Act, 1990 and Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and thus is of the view that the Company has a fair 
chance of succeeding the aforesaid cases. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial 
statements for the remaining amount of the bank guarantee.

17.1.2.	 On March 26, 2018, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed Order-in-Original No. 192/2018 whereby 
input tax adjustment of Rs. 539.7 million for sales tax levied at the import stage of plant, machinery and 
equipment, was rendered inadmissible and started recovery proceeding against the Company. In order to 
protect against coercive action, the Company filed petition no. 2481/2018 on March 29, 2018 before the 
SHC challenging the above Order-in-Original passed by SRB and SHC granted stay order against the said 
recovery proceeding.

	 Without prejudice to the above proceeding, the Company also filed appeal before Commissioner Appeals 
(SRB) but the order-in-original was upheld through order no. 11/2019. The Company, being aggrieved, 
filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal, SRB and the case was decided in favour of the Company and input 
declared validly claimed.

	 On May 08, 2018, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed Order-in-Original No. 459/2018 whereby input tax 
adjustment of Rs. 10.4 million for Sales tax levied at the import stage of plant, machinery and equipment, 
was rendered inadmissible and recovery proceeding were started by SRB. In order to protect against 
coercive action, the Company filed petition no. 3694/2018 before the SHC, challenging the above Order-
in-Original and SHC granted stay order against the said recovery proceeding. Without prejudice to the 
above proceeding, the Company filed appeal before Commissioner Appeals but the order-in-original was 
upheld through order no. 88/2019 disallowing input tax adjustment and demanded sales tax claimed 
above which was duly paid by the Company under protest. 

	 The Company has filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal, SRB which is pending adjudication to date.

	 The management believes, based on the advice of its legal advisor that the input tax adjustment of sales 
tax is in accordance with the provisions of applicable tax laws and thus is of the view that the eventual 
outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial 
statements.

17.1.3.	 During the year 2018, the Company, in conjunction with other port operators in Port Qasim jurisdiction, 
has filed petition CP No. D-3421 of 2018 before the SHC challenging the levy of sales tax on services 
on royalty payments to Port Qasim Authority, and SHC granted a stay order on April 30, 2018 initiating 
proceedings on the case. The management believes, based on the advice of its legal advisor, that royalty 
payments to PQA do not attract the provision of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 and thus is of 
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the view that the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been 
recorded in these financial statements.

17.2.	 COMMITMENTS

17.2.1.	 Performance bond issued by bank on behalf of the Company to PQA in pursuance of the Implementation 
Agreement of USD 2.5 million amounted to Rs. 265 million.

17.2.2.	 Guarantee bonds issued by bank on behalf of the Company to the Nazir of the Honorable High Court of 
Sindh in pursuance of the orders passed on the Company’s petitions as fully disclosed in the note 17.1.1 
amounted to Rs. 429.1 million. Securities for the above mentioned guarantees have been provided by the 
sponsors. 

17.2.3.	 Unexecuted capital expenditure contracts amounted to Rs. 261.8 million (2018: Rs. Nil). 

17.2.4.	 The Company has provided a Custom Bonded Guarantee to Pakistan Customs Authority issued by Faysal 
Bank Limited on behalf of the Company in accordance with the requirements of Section 554(6)(d) of 
Customs Rules 2001 in equivalence to USD 1 million.

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

18. REVENUE – net

Gross revenue  9,044,966  2,215,456 
Less: sales tax  (1,040,571)  (254,849)

8,004,395 1,960,607

19. COST OF SERVICES

Terminal handling and services 19.1  3,253,083 984,809
Depreciation 5.1.1  1,162,657 1,143,581
Fuel, power and utilities  485,664 185,513
Salaries, wages and benefits 19.2  368,951 235,925
Terminal maintenance  241,850 43,965
Insurance  142,416 83,283
Office maintenance  30,546 25,489
Travelling and conveyance  17,276 24,842
Security  14,082 18,198
Rent and rates  11,819 12,607
Amortization 6.2  19,083 19,176

  5,747,427 2,777,388 

19.1.	 This includes royalty amounting to Rs. 2,647 million (2018: Rs. 699 million) paid / payable during the year 
to Port Qasim Authority having registered office situated at Bin Qasim, Karachi-75020, Pakistan.

	
19.2.	 Includes Rs. 10.32 million (2018: Rs. 6.30 million) in respect of defined contributory provident fund.
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2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

20. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 20.1  181,722 162,783
Depreciation 5.1.1 50,100 50,835
Travelling and conveyance  43,355 19,990
Office maintenance and other expenses  39,128 23,827
Legal and professional charges  36,123 12,549
Bank charges 23,773 8,553
Insurance  15,889 5,740
Fees and subscription  13,490 15,973
Utilities  4,686 7,393
Auditors’ remuneration 20.2  3,076 3,939
Rent, rates and taxes   2,830 3,772
Amortization 6.2   646 132

414,818 315,486

20.1. Includes Rs. 5.09 million (2018: Rs. 4.20 million) in respect of defined contributory provident fund.

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

20.2. Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit fee 1,350 1,252
Tax advisory services 760 1,601
Fee for review engagements and other certifications 750 900
Out of pocket expenses 216 186

3,076 3,939

21. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts / term deposits – conventional 100,577 47,362
Profit on saving accounts – islamic  148 567

100,725 47,929
Income from non-financial assets
Liabilities no longer payable, written back 21.1  134,918 860
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  809 945

236,452 49,734

21.1. Represents reversal of contractors’ liabilities under the settlement agreement.

2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

22. TAXATION 

Current 22.1  100,055 24,508
Deferred  (216,284) (603,473)

(116,229) (578,965)

22.1.	 The income tax assessments of the Company has been finalized up to and including the tax year 2018. 
Provision for current taxation has been made on the basis of minimum tax under Section 113 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense and accounting loss before tax 
has not been presented in these financial statements.
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2019 2018
Note ---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

23. LOSS PER SHARE 

Loss after taxation (2,377,102) (2,634,570)

Number of shares

(Restated)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 23.1 1,740,806,669 1,553,737,215

Loss per share 23.2 (Rs. 1.37) (Rs. 1.70)

23.1.	 As fully disclosed in note 13.1, the Company has issued right shares during the year. The impact of bonus 
element due to right issue is accounted for in the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
in the current and prior year.

	
23.2.	 There is no dilutive effect on basic loss per share of the Company.

24.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including currency risk and 
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. The Company’s overall risk management program 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the 
Company’s financial performance.

	 The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized 
below:

24.1.	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates may 
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The exposure of these risks 
and their management is explained below:

(i)	 Interest rate risk 

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of 
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with 
floating interest rates.

	 The management keeps on evaluating different options available for interest rate swaps. As of reporting 
date, the sensitivity on the Company’s borrowing costs to a reasonable possible change of 100 basis 
points in KIBOR and 15 basis points in LIBOR is Rs 73.876 million (2018: Rs. 80.280 million), with all 
other variables held constant.

(ii)	 Foreign currency risk 

	 Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables 
exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk relates 
primarily to its long term finances, accrued interest thereon, and trade and other payables in foreign 
currency.
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	 The foreign currency exposure is partly covered as the Company’s billing substantially is determined in US 
Dollars. Moreover, the management keeps on evaluating different options available for hedging purposes. 
As of the reporting date, the sensitivity on the Company’s foreign currency obligations to a reasonable 
possible change of Rs. 5 in USD-PKR parity is Rs. 283.65 million (2018: Rs. 324.10 million), with all other 
variables held constant.

24.2.	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause 
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit 
exposure, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continuously assessing the credit worthiness 
of counter parties. 

	 Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities 
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the 
relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

	 The Company is exposed to credit risk on deposits, bank balances and trade debts. The Company seeks 
to minimise the credit risk exposure through having exposure only to customers / parties considered credit 
worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reporting 
date is Rs. 1,203.09 million (2018: Rs. 492.61 million). 

	 Quality of financial assets

	 The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings and the historical 
information about counter party default rates external credit ratings as shown below:

2019 2018
-------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Trade debts - unsecured
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 699,682 259,529

Cash with Banks
AA 104,800 104,800
A-1 - 594 
A-1+ 321,292 50,637
A1+ - 74,721 

426,092 230,752 
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24.3.	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard against 
the risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind. The 
maturity profile is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.

	
Less

On than 3 3 to 12 1 to 5
demand Months Months Years Total
---------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------

Trade and other payables - 362,014 1,339,209 - 1,701,223
Long term financing including

current maturity and interest - - 3,201,348 18,052,503 21,253,851
June 30, 2019 - 362,014 4,540,557 18,052,503 22,955,074

Less
On than 3 3 to 12 1 to 5

demand Months Months Years Total
---------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------

Trade and other payables - 200,797 1,698,648 - 1,899,445
Long term financing including

current maturity and interest 745,058 - 1,836,509 16,985,509 19,567,076
June 30, 2018 745,058 200,797 3,535,157 16,985,509 21,466,521

24.4.	 Fair values of financial instruments

	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arms-length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The carrying values of 
all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

	 Fair value hierarchy

	 Financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method, are categorized as follows:
	
	 Level 1 - Quoted market prices
	 Level 2 - Valuation Techniques (market observable)
	 Level 3 - Valuation Techniques (non-market observable)

	 As of reporting date, the company does not have any financial assets that requires characterization in 
Level 1, 2 and 3.

24.5. 	Capital risk management

	 The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong 
credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and 
potential investment projects, to maximize shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.

	 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic 
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

	 As of the reporting date, the Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by 
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any finance cost thereon, trade 
and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of 
financial position plus net debt.
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The gearing ratio as at June 30 is as follows:
2019 2018

Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Long term financing - secured 14  15,110,053 13,333,794
Trade and other payables including retention money  1,751,970 2,885,350
Accrued interest on long term financing  68,013 589,770
Total debt 16,930,036 16,808,914

Less: Cash and bank balances 12 (430,686) (232,070)

Net debt 16,499,350 16,576,844

Share capital 13  17,860,928 14,859,959
Accumulated losses  (4,949,666) (2,537,583)
Equity 12,911,262 12,322,376

Capital 29,410,612 28,899,220

Gearing ratio 56.1% 57.36%

The Company finances its investment portfolio through equity, borrowings and management of its project 
costs with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

25.    	REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

2019 2018
Chief 

Executive  Directors Executives Chief 
Executive  Directors Executives

---------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------------------------

Remuneration 18,211 18,211 29,028 16,304 16,304 23,915 
Bonus 12,520 12,520 16,112 3,104 3,104 4,459
Housing rent  5,463  5,463 8,713 4,892 4,892 7,175 
Retirement benefits  1,517  1,517 1,894 1,379 1,379 1,772 
Medical  1,821  1,821 2,905 1,630 1,630 2,391 
Utilities  1,821  1,821 2.905 1,630 1,630 2,391 

41,353 41,353 61,557 28,939 28,939 42,103

Number of persons 1 6 12 1 6 10

25.1	 The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the 
Company are also provided with the use of the Company maintained car and other benefits in accordance 
with terms of service.

25.2.	 During the year, the Company has paid fee of Rs. 4.90 million (2018: Rs. 5.50 million) to Chief Executive and 
Directors.

26.  	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
		
26.1.	 Related parties of the Company comprise companies with common directorship, retirement funds, directors 

and key management personnel. Detail of transactions with related parties during the year, other than 
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:
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Name of related party and
relationship with the Company Percentage 

of holding
Nature of 

transactions 2019 2018
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Associated companies   
Premier Mercantile Services 
(Private) Limited 43.30 Issue of share capital 129,935 -

Rent against office premises 2,781 2,792
 

Travel Club (Private) Limited - Payment for travelling expenses 9,323 5,888

Portlink International Services 
(Private) Limited - Consultancy services 32,940 29,900

Rent against office premises - 667
 

EFU General Insurance Limited - Payment of insurance premium 162,621 134,791

Premier Software (Private) Limited - IT support services 1,356 -

Other related parties  
Sponsors 50.48 Securities pledged for guarantees 429,100 858,200

Staff retirement contribution plan - Contribution 26.2 15,408 10,503

26.2.	 Investment out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified there under.

27.	 EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF IFRIC – 12 “SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS”

	 As explained in note 3.1, the required mandatory disclosure is as follows:

	 Under IFRIC-12, the consideration required to be made by operator (the Company) for the right to use the 
asset is to be accounted for as an intangible asset under IAS - 38 “Intangible Assets”. If the Company were 
to follow IFRIC-12 and IAS-38, the effect on the financial statements would be as follows:

2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets 
(Port Concession Rights) – written down value 26,500,155 26,997,302

Reclassification from intangible assets to intangible assets 
(Port Concession Rights) – written down value 443,612 456,901

Reclassification from stores and spares to intangibles assets
(Port Concession Rights) – written down value 119,828 27,459

Recognition of intangible assets (Port Concession Rights) on account of rent 
of backup and waterfront area (rent) 57,314 79,335

Recognition of present value of concession liability on account of 
intangibles (rent) 84,526 106,544

Interest expense charged for the year / year on account of intangibles (rent) 9,228 9,125

Amortisation expense charged for the year on account of intangibles (rent) 1,910 2,645

Amortisation expense charged for the year on account of concession 
assets (PPE) 958,080 944,899
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28. 	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

	 These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 02, 2019 by Board of Directors of the 
Company.

29.	 GENERAL					   
						    
29.1.	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

	 Number of persons employed at reporting date were 635 (2018: 481) and average number of persons 
employed during the year were 584 (2018: 417).

29.2.	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the 
purposes of comparison and to reflect the substance of the transactions.

29.3.	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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As at June 30, 2019
Pettern of Share Holding

 Number of Share Holders Size of Holding  No. of Shares Held From To

1631 1 100 42,034
2600 101 500 1,063,743
2538 501 1000 2,302,471
6823 1001 5000 19,276,498
3033 5001 10000 23,683,676
1344 10001 15000 16,969,881
875 15001 20000 15,672,119
591 20001 25000 13,634,329
394 25001 30000 11,096,204
296 30001 35000 9,571,964
258 35001 40000 9,787,040
177 40001 45000 7,550,627
266 45001 50000 12,983,431
131 50001 55000 6,879,982
115 55001 60000 6,663,081
97 60001 65000 6,055,140
65 65001 70000 4,425,952
75 70001 75000 5,467,806
58 75001 80000 4,537,160
54 80001 85000 4,464,083
37 85001 90000 3,248,176
45 90001 95000 4,173,367

104 95001 100000 10,355,655
40 100001 105000 4,086,054
32 105001 110000 3,462,974
26 110001 115000 2,913,210
31 115001 120000 3,642,447
38 120001 125000 4,620,954
21 125001 130000 2,685,472
16 130001 135000 2,116,066
22 135001 140000 3,043,393
21 140001 145000 3,002,287
34 145001 150000 5,069,093
15 150001 155000 2,295,568
13 155001 160000 2,056,166
12 160001 165000 1,949,002
12 165001 170000 2,012,922
12 170001 175000 2,087,976

6 175001 180000 1,067,917
9 180001 185000 1,636,368

10 185001 190000 1,886,486
9 190001 195000 1,734,424

29 195001 200000 5,788,145
8 200001 205000 1,616,105
7 205001 210000 1,461,117
4 210001 215000 850,608
5 215001 220000 1,087,178

11 220001 225000 2,450,155
6 225001 230000 1,362,570
9 230001 235000 2,092,959
5 235001 240000 1,190,059
7 240001 245000 1,694,172
9 245001 250000 2,242,783
7 250001 255000 1,768,353
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Pettern of Share Holding
As at June 30, 2019

 Number of Share Holders Size of Holding  No. of Shares Held From To

3 255001 260000 775,802
11 260001 265000 2,894,361

3 265001 270000 799,945
3 270001 275000 820,314
5 275001 280000 1,386,926
4 280001 285000 1,123,658
3 285001 290000 867,500
2 290001 295000 584,056
8 295001 300000 2,399,500
3 300001 305000 901,680
2 305001 310000 615,160
4 310001 315000 1,251,737
3 315001 320000 952,703
6 320001 325000 1,937,280
3 335001 340000 1,014,000
2 340001 345000 688,829
2 345001 350000 691,810
3 350001 355000 1,059,400
1 355001 360000 357,097
4 360001 365000 1,445,980
2 365001 370000 732,572
2 370001 375000 746,000
1 375001 380000 378,614
1 380001 385000 381,117
4 385001 390000 1,553,703
1 390001 395000 395,000

12 395001 400000 4,796,389
2 400001 405000 801,668
1 405001 410000 409,000
1 415001 420000 416,500
2 420001 425000 848,843
2 425001 430000 853,474
3 430001 435000 1,299,920
2 440001 445000 885,233
3 445001 450000 1,344,509
1 450001 455000 452,984
1 455001 460000 456,449
1 460001 465000 461,588
2 465001 470000 934,128
2 470001 475000 940,618
2 475001 480000 957,174
3 480001 485000 1,446,279
1 485001 490000 487,991
2 490001 495000 984,157
8 495001 500000 4,000,000
1 500001 505000 502,660
1 505001 510000 506,023
1 515001 520000 515,870
1 520001 525000 523,500
1 525001 530000 526,252
2 530001 535000 1,062,515
1 535001 540000 536,079
1 540001 545000 540,532
4 545001 550000 2,197,000
2 550001 555000 1,108,261
1 560001 565000 564,529
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 Number of Share Holders Size of Holding  No. of Shares Held From To

2 565001 570000 1,132,328
1 570001 575000 573,065
1 580001 585000 580,997
1 590001 595000 590,389
4 595001 600000 2,398,000
1 620001 625000 622,290
2 625001 630000 1,254,000
2 635001 640000 1,280,000
2 650001 655000 1,302,500
1 670001 675000 670,094
1 680001 685000 685,000
1 685001 690000 686,072
1 695001 700000 700,000
1 700001 705000 704,316
1 705001 710000 707,032
1 720001 725000 724,323
1 730001 735000 734,391
2 745001 750000 1,494,996
1 755001 760000 757,228
1 765001 770000 765,650
1 770001 775000 773,669
1 775001 780000 779,354
1 790001 795000 794,247
2 795001 800000 1,600,000
1 800001 805000 803,000
1 850001 855000 852,000
1 865001 870000 869,835
1 910001 915000 914,000
1 920001 925000 923,864
1 945001 950000 947,519
1 950001 955000 950,500
1 960001 965000 961,559
6 995001 1000000 6,000,000
1 1010001 1015000 1,013,000
3 1045001 1050000 3,147,500
1 1060001 1065000 1,060,500
2 1095001 1100000 2,200,000
2 1120001 1125000 2,250,000
1 1145001 1150000 1,150,000
1 1195001 1200000 1,198,500
1 1285001 1290000 1,289,926
1 1295001 1300000 1,296,559
1 1300001 1305000 1,301,072
1 1345001 1350000 1,349,000
1 1395001 1400000 1,400,000
1 1450001 1455000 1,450,837
1 1585001 1590000 1,585,159
1 1600001 1605000 1,603,000
1 1640001 1645000 1,642,500
1 1680001 1685000 1,681,949
1 1690001 1695000 1,692,500
1 1750001 1755000 1,750,224
1 1935001 1940000 1,940,000
1 1970001 1975000 1,974,500
1 2055001 2060000 2,056,000
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Pettern of Share Holding
As at June 30, 2019

 Number of Share Holders Size of Holding  No. of Shares Held From To

1 2105001 2110000 2,106,000
1 2145001 2150000 2,148,000
1 2355001 2360000 2,359,700
1 2475001 2480000 2,479,361
1 2495001 2500000 2,500,000
1 2555001 2560000 2,555,845
1 2675001 2680000 2,679,932
1 2700001 2705000 2,705,000
1 2795001 2800000 2,800,000
1 3145001 3150000 3,146,994
1 3205001 3210000 3,209,500
1 3370001 3375000 3,375,000
1 3530001 3535000 3,534,445
1 3620001 3625000 3,623,000
1 3690001 3695000 3,690,500
1 4735001 4740000 4,738,000
1 4780001 4785000 4,785,000
1 4995001 5000000 5,000,000
1 5375001 5380000 5,379,687
1 7365001 7370000 7,366,454
1 11495001 11500000 11,500,000
1 14260001 14265000 14,260,154
1 25625001 25630000 25,627,434
1 27065001 27070000 27,065,984
1 28075001 28080000 28,076,198
1 30955001 30960000 30,955,084
1 37020001 37025000 37,021,280
1 41025001 41030000 41,025,432
1 153060001 153065000 153,061,809
1 169420001 169425000 169,423,858
1 773335001 773340000 773,335,906

22350  1,786,092,772 
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Key Share Holdings
As at June 30, 2019

Categories of Shareholders                     Number of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
Held  Percentage % 

Associated Companies, Undertaking And Related Parties  2  926,742,544  51.89 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their Spouse and Minor Children  9  104,573,476  5.86 
Public Sector Companies and Corporations  1  11,500,000  0.64 
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions, 

Insurance Companies, Takaful and Pension Funds  9  6,439,289  0.36 

Mutual Funds and Modarabas  9  3,972,435  0.22 
Foreign Entities  9  187,436,838  10.49 
General Public / Individuals - Local  21,969  482,207,815  27.00 
General Public / Individuals - Foreign  19  1,204,807  0.07 
Others  323  62,015,568  3.47 

 22,350  1,786,092,772  100.00 

Additional Information

Categories of Shareholders                     Number of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
Held  Percentage % 

Associated Companies, Undertaking And Related Parties
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited - Associated Company 1 773,335,906
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited - Other Related Party 1 153,406,638

2 926,742,544  51.89 

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and thier Spouse and Minor Children
Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui 1  37,021,280 
Mrs. Saba Haleem Siddiqui 1  14,260,154 
Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan 1  103,622 
Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui 1  25,627,434 
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui 1  27,065,984 
Mr. Muhammad Masood Ahmed Usmani 1  324,567 
Mrs. Hina Usmani 1  18,282 
Syed Nizam A. Shah 1  150,561 
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui 1  1,592 

9  104,573,476  5.86 

Executives  8  472,763  0.03 

Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd.- Pmd  1  11,500,000  0.64 

Mutual Funds and Modarabas
CDC - Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 230,935
CDC - Trustee MCB DCF Income Fund 1 13,500
CDC - Trustee NIT Income Fund - MT 1 84,000
CDC - Trustee First Habib Income Fund - MT 1 409,000
CDC - Trustee Faysal MTS Fund - MT 1 852,000
MC FSL Trustee JS - Income Fund 1 16,000
CDC - Trustee Askari Equity Fund 1 140,000
CDC - Trustee KSE Meezan Index Fund 1 2,148,000
MCBFSL - Trustee Pak Oman Advantage Asset Allocation Fund 1 79,000

9 3,972,435  0.22 
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Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest Number of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
Held  Percentage % 

Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited 1 773,335,906  43.30 
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 1 153,406,638  8.59 
International Finance Corporation 1  169,423,858  9.49 

3 1,096,166,402  61.38 

Details of Purchase / Sales of Shares by Directors and their spouses/minor children during the year 2019
Name * Date Purchase Sale

Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui** 31-Aug-18  1,233,336  - 
Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui* 31-Aug-18  6,013,041 
Mrs. Saba Haleem A. Siddiqui 31-Aug-18  -  - 
Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan* 31-Aug-18  17,409  - 
Mr. Aasim A. Siddiqui* 31-Aug-18  4,305,886  - 
Mr. Sharique A. Siddiqui** 31-Aug-18  1,233,336  - 
Mr. Sharique A. Siddiqui* 31-Aug-18  4,340,366 
Mr. Muhammad Masood Ahmed Usmani* 31-Aug-18  54,533  - 
Syed Nizam Shah* 31-Aug-18  25,297  - 
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui* 31-Aug-18  267  - 

*The above have each subscribed to right shares as offered to them by the Company at par value of Rs. 10/- each during the year.

**The above have each purchased the unsubscribed right shares offered to them by the Company at par value of Rs. 10/- each, during the year.

Key Share Holdings
As at June 30, 2019
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Notice of the 10th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 10th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Pakistan International Bulk 
Terminal Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Friday, October 25, 2019 at 11:30 am at Beach Luxury Hotel, 
Karachi to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business 

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the 
Directors’ and Auditor’s reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2019.

2.	 To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. The members are hereby given notice that 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the re-appointment of retiring Auditors, M/s 
EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company. 

3.	 To elect seven (7) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board under Section 159 (1) of the Companies Act, 
2017 for a period of three (3) years. The term of the office of the present Board of Directors of the Company 
will expire on October 26, 2019. The retiring Directors are Capt. Haleem Ahmad Siddiqui, Mr. Sharique Azim 
Siddiqui, Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui, Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui, Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan and Mr. M. Masood Ahmed 
Usmani. 

Special Business 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as special 
resolution to amend the Memorandum of Association of the Company, in accordance with Sections 32 of the 
Companies Act 2017, to incorporate LPG Handling as one of the objects of the Company.

“RESOLVED that subject to confirmation of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the 
following new clause be and is hereby added immediately after clause 5 of the existing Object Clause of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company as a new clause 5A to read as follows:

“To Carry out the business of handling, storing, warehousing, transporting, transmitting, distributing and to 
carry out any other ancillary activity in connection with Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG) and all other related or 
similar products, subject to all requisite regulatory licences, permissions and approvals.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the amended Memorandum of Association, as laid before the members, bearing 
the initials of the Company Secretary for the purpose of identification be and is hereby approved and adopted.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer and / or Company Secretary (“authorized persons”) 
be and are hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take any or all necessary actions to complete 
all legal and corporate formalities, make amendments, modification addition or deletion and file all requisite 
documents and/or application with requisite documents with the Registrar / SECP to effectuate and implement 
this special resolution.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the aforesaid alteration in the Memorandum of the Company shall be subject to 
any amendment, modification, addition or deletion as may be deemed appropriate by the authorized person 
or as may be suggested, directed and advised by the SECP which suggestion, direction and advise shall be 
deemed to be have been approved as part of the passed Special Resolution without the need of the members 
to pass a fresh Special Resolution.”

A Statement of Material Facts covering the above-mentioned special business, as required under Section 
134(3) and Section 166 of the Companies Act 2017 is annexed to the notice of meeting circulated to the 
members.

	 By Order of the Board,

Karachi	   Karim Bux
Dated: 03.10.2019    	  Company Secretary
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NOTES

1.	 Book Closure
The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 18th October 2019 to 25th October 2019 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Independent Share Registrar, 
M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi by the close of business on 17th October 2019 will be considered in time to be eligible for the purpose 
of attending and voting at the AGM.

2.	 Election of Directors 
The present Directors of the Company were appointed in the annual general meeting held on 26 October, 
2016. In terms of Section 159 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017 (“Act”), the directors have fixed the number of 
elected directors at seven (7) to be elected in the AGM for a period of three years.  Any person who seeks 
to contest election to the office of director shall, whether he is a retiring director or otherwise, file with the 
Company at its Registered Office, 2nd Floor, Business Plaza, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi not later than 
fourteen days before the day of the meeting, the following documents:

a.	 His/her Folio No./CDC Investors Account No./CDC Participant No./Sub-Account No.

b.	 Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the election of directors in terms of Section 159(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2017.

c.	 Consent to act as director on Form 28 under section 167 of the Companies Act, 2017.

d.	 A detailed profile along with his/her office address for placement onto the Company’s website as required 
under SECP’s SRO 634(1) 2015 dated July 10, 2014.

e.	 He/she has not been declared by a court of competent jurisdiction as defaulter in repayment of loan to a 
financial institution.

f.	 The Selection of Independent Directors will be complied with the requirements of Section 166 of the 
Companies Act, 2017. Person contesting as Independent Director shall also submit a declaration that he/
she qualifies the criteria of eligibility and Independence notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and rules 
and regulations issued thereunder.

g.	 An attested copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC);

h.	 A declaration that:

•	 He/she is not ineligible to become a director of the Company under any applicable laws and regulations 
(including listing regulations of Stock Exchange).

•	 He/she is not serving as a director of more than five listed companies. Provided that this limit shall not 
include the directorship in the listed subsidiaries of a listed holding company.

•	 Neither he/she nor his/her spouse is engaged in the business of brokerage or is a sponsor, director or 
officer of a corporate brokerage house.

•	 He/she is aware of his/her duties and powers under the relevant laws, Memorandum & Articles of 
Association of Company and listing regulations of stock exchange;

3.	 Members Right to Proxy
A member entitled of the Company, entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint any other 
member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall have 
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such rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at this meeting as are available to the Member. Proxy 
Form, in order to be effective, must be received at the registered office of the Company at least 48 hours before 
the Meeting and no account shall be taken of any part of the day that is not working day. The proxy need not 
be a member of the Company, and a member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy.

4.	 Participation in General Meeting
Members, who have deposited their shares into Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limited, are being 
advised to bring their original National Identity Cards along with CDC Participant ID and account number at 
the meeting venue.

Members who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“CDC”) will 
further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan.

A.	 For Attending the Meeting

a.	 In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are 
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC 
or, original Passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

b.	 In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the 
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B.	 For Appointing Proxies

a.	 In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are 
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement (note 2 
above).

b.	 The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form.

c.	 Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form.

d.	 The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

e.	 In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be 
furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

5.	 Change of Address
Members are requested to timely notify any change in their address immediately to our Registrar M/s CDC 
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

6.	 Request for Video Conference Facility
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a city and collectively 
holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the facility of 
video-link for participating in the meeting. The demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share 
Registrar at the address given hereinabove at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting on the 
Standard Form which can be downloaded from the company’s website: www.pibt.com.pk  

7.	 Placement of Financial Statements
The Company has placed the Notice of AGM and Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 
30, 2019 along with Auditor’s, Directors’ and Chairman’s Reports thereon on its website: www.pibt.com.pk  

8.	 Submission of CNIC copies for Dividend Payments:
The SECP has made it mandatory for listed companies to mention, in the case of Individuals, Computerized 
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National Identity Card (“CNIC”), National Identity Card for Overseas Pakistanis (“NICOP”) or Passport number 
and in the case of Corporate Entity, National Tax Number (“NTN”) of the shareholders or their authorized 
persons, on dividend warrants. In the absence of such information payment of dividend will be withheld in terms 
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 stating that a company may withhold the payment of dividend of 
a member where the member has not provided the complete information or documents as specified by SECP. 
Therefore, shareholders who have not yet provided such information are once again advised to provide the 
same to the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company.

9.	 Payment of Cash Dividend through Electronic Mode
Section 242 of the Act requires that the listed companies shall pay cash dividend only through electronic mode 
directly into the bank account designated by the shareholders. SECP vide its notification S.R.O.1145 (I)/2017 
has also issued the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 whereby every shareholder 
shall be responsible to provide valid information pertaining to its designated bank account to disburse any 
dividend payable in cash only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the 
entitled shareholders. 

In this regard, the Company has already communicated through its letters addressed to the shareholders 
individually along with newspapers publications requesting to provide the International Bank Accounts Number 
(“IBAN”) designated by the shareholders to receive the cash dividends electronically. Hence, shareholders are 
requested to fill the required fields of the Company’s letter available on website of the Company: www.pibt.
com.pk and send the same to the Share Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. In case of shares held 
as book-entry securities, the said information would be required to be provided to Central Depository System 
(“CDS”), through CDS Participants.       

10.	Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of AGM to Members through E-mail:
SECP through its Notification No. SRO 787 (I)/2014, dated September 08, 2014, has allowed companies to 
circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) to its 
members through email. The shareholders who desire to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and 
Notice of AGM through email are requested to fill the requisite form titled ‘Standard Request Form’ placed on 
the website and send it to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company located at 2nd Floor, 
In case any member, subsequently, requests for hard copy of Annual Financial Statements, the same shall be 
provided free of cost within seven days of receipt of such request.

11.	 Transmission of Annual Reports through CD/DVD/USB:
The Company, as allowed by SECP Notification No. SRO 470 (I)/2016, dated May 31, 2016, and per the consent 
of the shareholders of the Company accorded in the 7th AGM of the Company held on 26 October 2016 has 
circulated the Annual Report including Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, Notice 
of Annual General Meeting, and other information contained therein of the Company to shareholders through 
electronic medium, i.e., DVD at their registered addresses instead of transmitting the said annual accounts in 
hard copies. However, a shareholder may request to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the 
Company to provide hard copy of Annual Audited Accounts instead of DVD and the same will be provided at 
his/her registered addresses, free of cost, within one week of the demand. In this regard, a ‘Standard Request 
Form’ has been placed on website of the Company for shareholders to communicate the need of hard copies 
of the Annual Audited Accounts instead of sending the same through DVD. A shareholder may also prefer to 
receive hard copies for all future Annual Audited Accounts.

12.	Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account: 
The Shareholders having physical shareholding may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor 
Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into script-less form. This will facilitate them in many 
ways including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not 
permitted as per existing regulations of the Stock Exchange. Further, Section 72 of the Act states that after the 
commencement of the Act from a date notified by SECP, a company having share capital, shall have shares in 
book-entry form only. Every existing company shall be required to replace its physical shares with book-entry 
form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by SECP, within a period not exceeding four 
years from the promulgation of the Act.

Notice of the 10th Annual General Meeting
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STATEMENTS UNDER SECTION 166 (3) AND SECTION 134 (3) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Election of Directors 

Section 166 of the Companies Act 2017 provides that a statement of material facts is annexed to the notice of the 
general meeting called for the purpose of election of directors which shall indicate the justification for choosing the 
appointee for appointment as independent director. The Company is required to have two independent directors 
on its Board in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. 
Accordingly, the two directors who meet the criteria set out for independence under Section 166 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 will be elected by the shareholders as per procedure laid down in Section 159 of the Companies Act, 
2017.

Amendments in Memorandum of Association

The Company intends to apply to Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (‘OGRA’) for a license for dealing in the LPG 
business. As per the requirement of OGRA, the Memorandum of the Company must contain dealing in the LPG 
business as one of its objects. Therefore, pursuant to Section 32 of the Companies Act 2017, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has proposed to alter the Memorandum of Association of the Company to include the 
business of dealing/handling Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) in the Objects Clause. 

No directors or Chief Executive of the Company or their relatives have any interest in the proposed alterations of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company, except in their capacities as Directors/Chief Executive/shareholders.

Comparative Analysis

It is proposed to add the new clause to the existing Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the 
Company, as mentioned herein above for adding a new business activity of LPG business.

Reasons / justification for Alteration in Memorandum of Association:

The proposed alteration in Memorandum of Association will allow the Company to add a new business activity of 
LPG business which is expected to add value to business of the Company and its shareholders. 

Availability of Relevant Documents and Inspection

A copy each of the existing and proposed Memorandum of Association indicating the proposed amendments is 
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company from 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on any working day, 
up to the last working day before the date of the Annual General Meeting. The same shall also be available for 
inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

Statement of the Board of Directors

We, the members of the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirm that the proposed amendments/
alterations in the Memorandum of Association of the Company comply with the applicable laws and regulatory 
framework.
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Proxy Form
The Company Secretary
Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited
2nd Floor, Business Plaza, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi

I/We, ___________________________________of ________________________________________being member of 
Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited and holder of ________________________ Ordinary Shares as per 
Share Register Folio No. ____________________ and /or CDC Participant ID No. ______________________hereby 
appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss ___________________________________________________________________of failing her 
_________________________________ of ____________________________________ (Full Address) ____________
________________________________________________________________ being member of the Company as our 
proxy to attend, act and vote for us and on our behalf at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held on October 25,  2019 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this _________________________________day of__________________________   2019.

WITNESS: In presence of   

1.  	 Name___________________________

	 Address_________________________
	 CNIC No_________________________

	 Signature________________________ 

2.	 Name___________________________

    	 Address_________________________

	 CNIC No_________________________

	 Signature________________________ 

NOTES:

1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
for his/her proxy who shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as 
are available to a member.

2.	 The Proxy in order to be valid must be signed across Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and should be deposited 
with the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3.	 The Proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport and bring 
folio number at the time of attending the meeting.

4.	 Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

5.	 CDC shareholders and their Proxies must attach either an attested photocopy of their Computerized 
National Identity Card or Passport with this Proxy Form.

6.	 In case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen 
signature and attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the Proxy shall be submitted along with the proxy 
form.

Signature
on Rs. 5/- 
Revenue
Stamp
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